




































 

 
TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205 

 
Town Manager’s Office   • 43 Bombardier Road • 802-893-6655 • FAX: 893-1005 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Town of Milton Selectboard  
 
FROM:  Erik Wells, Director of Administration  
 
RE: MCYC Healthy Communities Grant 
 
DATE:  July 11, 2016  
 
The MCYC has received grant funding to work to improve the overall health of the 
community. Tony Moulton, Executive Director of the MCYC will be at the meeting and 
share with the Selectboard the overall goals of the grant and how the Town can be a 
partner in achieving milestones for it. In relation to the project, Tony has met with a staff 
working group that includes Donna Barlow Casey, Kym Duchesneau, Brett Van Noordt and 
myself.  
 
An area to begin discussion on tonight is the Town’s current workplace safety policy with 
some housekeeping items since its inception to reflect modernity. What follows is a 
redlined version with suggested edits to incorporate language regarding the use of 
combustibles and non-combustibles that is currently lacking in our internal policy. Smoking 
is addressed, but the language does not include e-cigarettes. In addition other drugs like 
marijuana are not specifically addressed that would fall under the combustibles category. 
The terminology casts a wider policy net. Non-combustibles would include synthetic forms 
of marijuana and other drugs as well. Another edit moves language regarding drug and 
alcohol use in the workplace to Section 2 instead of Section 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

ARTICLE XIV WORK PLACE HEALTH AND SAFETY 
SECTION ANALYSIS 
Section 1.Vermont Occupational Safety Hazards Act (VOSHA) 
Section 2.Smoking and Tobacco Policy 
Section 3. Drug Testing 
Section 4. Clothing____________________________________________________  
Section 1.Vermont Occupational Safety Hazards Act (VOSHA) 

In the interest of the safety and well-being of Town workers, all employees shall 
acquaint themselves with the rules and regulations of the Vermont Occupational 
Safety Hazards Act (VOSHA).  All department heads shall be responsible for 
enforcing safety rules as required by VOSHA and /or adopted by the Town.  

All Town employees shall observe safe work practices including but not limited to, 
the wearing of appropriate work clothing and/or equipment; follow all prescribed 
work practices as presented in department policies and procedures.   

Section 2. Smoking and Tobacco PolicyCombustible, Non-Combustibles & Alcohol  
In order to comply with the provisions of 18 V.S.A. §1421, et.seq., the Town of 
Milton originally established this Policy to protect workers by prohibiting smoking 
and use of smokeless tobacco products in the workplace except in designated areas.  
 The United States Surgeon General, in his 1986 report on Involuntary Smoking, 
concluded:  
 Involuntary Smoking is a cause of disease, including lung cancer, in healthy 

nonsmokers; 
 The simple separation of smokers and nonsmokers within the same air space may 

reduce, but does not eliminate, the exposure of nonsmokers to environmental 
tobacco smoke.  

In 1993, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) classified environmental 
tobacco smoke as a Group A carcinogen, that is, a substance known to cause cancer 
in humans.  The EPA recognizes no safe level of exposure for Group A carcinogens.  
Smokeless tobacco is a significant health risk and is not a safe substitute for smoking 
cigarettes.  According to the Centers for Disease Control, smokeless tobacco contains 
28 cancer-causing agents (carcinogens).  It is a known cause of human cancer, as it 
increases the risk of developing cancer of the oral cavity, other oral health problems, 
and can lead to nicotine addiction and dependence.  
In light of these findings, the Town of Milton shall be entirely smoke and tobacco 
freefree of all combustible and non-combustible tobacco and illegal drug 
substances.  Smoking and use of smokeless tobaccoUse of these products will shall 
be strictly prohibited within all Town owned vehicles and within all municipal owned 
buildings and structures.  It shall also be prohibited in all entranceways and anywhere 
an outside air intake is located.  
 
This Policy applies to all employees, volunteers, clients, contractors, and visitors 
working within and around all municipal owned buildings, structures and vehicles.  
Tobacco Ssmoking may only occur at a reasonable distance (e.g., 30 feet or more) 
outside any enclosed area where smoking is prohibited to insure that environmental 
tobacco smoke does not enter the area through entrances, windows, ventilation 
systems or any other means.    



 

 
 

The consumption of alcohol by a town employee or volunteer while on the job or 
serving  hours is strictly prohibited.  
 
An employee’s or volunteer’s failure to comply with the smokingthis policy shall 
constitute cause for disciplinary action, and the failure of the Town to implement or 
enforce the policy shall be grounds for a grievance procedure by an aggrieved 
employee, and any violations shall be promptly rendered.  
 
Employees or volunteers who are found to be using illegal drugs and/or alcohol on 
the job/during service will be subject to immediate dismissal.  
 
The Health Officer and/or Deputy Health Officer are designated as the person(s) to 
enforce all rules and regulations in accordance with 18 V.S.A. and this policy.  

Section 3. Drug Testing 
In accordance with the Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991, all 
Town employees who are required to hold a commercial driver’s license shall be 
subject to pre-employment and regular drug and alcohol testing in accordance with 
the Department of Transportation rules and procedures. 

Employees who are found to be using illegal drugs and/or alcohol on the job will be 
subject to immediate dismissal.  

Section 4. Clothing  
Public Works Supervisors will be provided with clothing comparable to the items 
outlined in the AFSCME Contract. 

  



 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 

TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  
Legislative and Fiscal Analysis of Requested Selectboard Actions  
 

 
2016 VTrans Bike/Pedestrian Grant Application 

 
 
Date: July 11, 2016 
 
Legislative Analysis:  
 
The intent of the VTrans Bicycle and Pedestrian Program is to improve access and safety for 
bicyclists and/or pedestrians through the planning, design and construction of infrastructure 
projects. The Town has been successful in attaining these grants in the past, for example the 
McMullen Road Sidewalk Project.  
 
Grants fall within three categories: Scoping, design/construction and small-scale construction. 
The cost share is 80/20 with a 20% match required by the municipality. This has changed from a 
90/10 split in recent years. VTrans anticipates awarding $4 million in Federal funds this grant 
round for scoping and design/construction projects. 
 
The Town of Milton has a number of sidewalk gaps in its infrastructure remaining. I am asking 
the Selectboard to consider applying for a 2016 Bike/Pedestrian grant to construct 3,830 linear 
feet of sidewalk adjacent to US. Rte 7 South to fill in the current gaps from Nancy Drive to 
Haydenberry Drive as a component of the Milton 4D Project. This would be a 
design/construction project. LandWorks recently completed the final conceptual design report. 
That report is a strong asset to support a grant application, in conjunction with support from 
the CCRPC. Filling in these sidewalk gaps would serve the densely populated residential area to 
improve safety and provide for increased pedestrian mobility on that side of Route 7 creating a 
connection to the Town Core. The applications are due by July 15th. Awards are announced in 
September. There is a four fiscal year timeline to use the grant funds, requiring the construction 
to be complete on this project by 2020. VTrans maps out the timeline in this fashion:  

• September 2016- Grant Award Announcement 
• November 2016- Grant Agreement Between VTrans and Municipality Executed  
• January 2017- Procurement Process to secure Local Project Manager and Design 

Engineer Complete 
• July 2017- Conceptual plans developed and environmental document secured  
• April 2018- Preliminary plan completed  
• October 2019- Right of Way plans and easements approved and ROW cleared  
• April 2020- Final plans and bid documents completed  
• May 2020- Project goes out to bid for construction  

 
The project falls within the majority of the VTrans Right of Way on Route 7. I connected with 
VTrans head of ROW and for the Town to use the State ROW for improvements it would file an 
application with the permitting division. Permitting would review and provide design standards 
and any other conditions it feels are required to fulfill the project. There is not a cost associated 



 

 

with this use approval by VTrans. It would take place during the design phase of the project. 
Easements may be needed according to Dubois & King because the sidewalk may be raised up 
above the existing ground, and fill slopes may extend outside the VTrans ROW onto private 
property. There also exists the possibility of existing utility relocations that cannot occur, 
requiring the sidewalk to deviate out of the VTrans ROW in segments. There are 18 parcels 
where this potential exists, and that has been included in the administrative portion of the 
budget. There also exists a high potential for archeological resources. Archeological costs can 
escalate a project quickly. The CCRPC in the Milton US Rte. 7 Corridor Study indentified filling 
this sidewalk gap as a short term goal for the Town in the next 1-3 years.   
 
According to data from the State of Vermont crash database, there were 55 vehicle accidents on 
Route 7 between Nancy Drive and Haydenberry Drive from 2011 through 2015. This data 
demonstrates a high risk for the 0.9 mile stretch of roadway. Through observation, a number of 
people walk on the side of the road along Route 7 South with the absence of a full sidewalk, 
putting them at risk in a high crash area. 
 
The conceptual design of the Milton 4D Project still warrants further discussion and Selectboard 
action on streetscaping elements and implementation using TIF dollars. This sidewalk grant 
component is a step to augment the revenue streams for the overall Milton 4D project using 
funding the Town has successfully secured in the past. I included the sidewalk gap map of the 
area and the construction cost estimates by Dubois & King for reference at the end of this 
document, along with the grant application budget I have put together. Additional safety and 
traffic calming measures have been identified in the Route 7 Corridor Study which was used in 
the LandWorks Conceptual Design. I’ve focused this project just on a sidewalk segments, 
curbing and drainage. The M4D Final Conceptual Design Report will be submitted with this 
grant application to meet the grant requirements of a project scoping study and construction 
cost estimate. Dubois & King will be providing me with the background information used to 
derive it’s estimate that I will include in the grant application.  
 
Fiscal Analysis:  
 
In the LandWorks conceptual design, a construction estimate of $530,969 was rendered by 
Dubois & King for the curbed and uncurbed 3,830 feet of sidewalk gaps from Nancy Drive to 
Haydenberry Drive with associated drainage. VTrans suggests using a 20% benchmark of 
construction cost for project design/engineering costs. For construction inspection, VTrans 
suggests using a 10-20% benchmark to estimate these costs. For example, in the McMullen 
Road Sidewalk Project our construction inspection contract is for 8.3% of the total project costs. 
I used the construction estimate to base the engineering and inspection budget amounts on 
using the methodology listed above. 
 
The following is the project budget estimate for the grant application. I worked with Lucy 
Gibson at Dubois & King to verify and work through to estimate benchmark amounts for ROW 
and archeological. Local Project Management is included to re-coup staff time spent managing 
the project- it also provides the Town with an option to contract it out and use the grant to pay 
for that person’s time.  
 
 



 

 

Project Budget  
 
Expenses  
Item Cost Note 
Construction  Dubois & King Estimate  

Segment D Sidewalk $52,975  
Segment C Sidewalk $221,650  
Segment B Sidewalk $47,000 Includes ravine crossing 
Segment A Sidewalk $174,900 Includes ravine crossing 
Segment C Curb & Drain $22,000  
Segment A/B Curb & Drain $12,444  

Construction Contingency  $53,097 10% of construction estimate  
Engineering $106,194 20% of construction cost estimate  
Construction Inspection $79,645 15% of construction cost estimate 
ROW Easements / Legal $90,000 18 parcels, benchmark of $5,000 each 
Archeological  $30,000 Desktop review stated high potential  
Local Project Management $72,716 10% Construction/Engineering/ROW 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $962,621 Estimated Project Cost 
80% Grant Request $770,097  
20% Local Match $192,524  
 
Revenue  
Source Amount Note 
VTrans Bike/Ped Grant* $770,097 Grant Project Cost 80% 
Local Match  20%  Project Cost 

Impact Fees Collected FY ‘17 $45,000 In approved CIP  
Impact Fees Collected FY ‘18 $49,175  
Impact Fees Collected FY ‘19 $49,175  
Impact Fees Collected FY ‘20 $49,174  

TOTAL $962,621  
*VTrans grant is a reimbursement structure; qualified expenses are requisitioned at 80% 
 
The impact fee study group this past spring also identified impact fee funds available in the 
transportation category to expend. If the Board moves to authorize this grant application, a 
portion of those funds could be used as well to offset the amounts listed above to collect in 
outlaying years.  
 
Based on the project schedule provided by VTrans earlier in this L&F, there exists four fiscal 
years to collect and/or assign matching funds before construction would be slated in Summer 
2020 (FY ’21). Approximately 68% of the project cost ($663,711) is estimated for construction 
and construction inspection, which would occur in FY ’21. In the project design and ROW 
phases leading up to construction, by the project estimate up to $226,194 would be expended 
(23% of the total). The Town’s obligation would be $45,239 for its 20% match on this portion of 
the project, and those funds are being collected in FY ’17. The other expense is municipal 
project management estimated at $72,716 over the life of the project, the Town’s match on 



 

 

that component would be $14,543 and spread over multiple years. In summary, through this 
revenue structure for the Town match, adequate funds will be available during the pre-
construction phases to meet the match requirements and requisition from the grant 
throughout.  
 
The grant application also allows for identification for partial project funding. I have identified 
Segments A and B as a partial award project. This would enable the ravine crossings to be built 
and create the connection to Haydenberry Drive. The cost estimate for that component is as 
follows: 
 
Total Project Estimate $415,420  
Grant 80% $332,336.06  
Local Match 20% $83,084  

 
The local match would be collected through impact fees in FY ’17 and FY ’18.  
 
Recommended Action: A motion to approve the Town Manager to submit a 2016 VTrans 
Bike/Ped Grant Application for this project.  
 
Prepared By: Erik Wells, Director of Administration  
 
Project Area: 
 

 
 
Sidewalk gaps are identified by the purple dots. This project would fill in all of these gaps. 
 

Segment D Segment C 
Segment B Segment A 



 

 

 
Google Earth imagery along the proposed project area on the left. 
 
Route 7 Sidewalk Gap Construction Estimates by Segment Prepared by Dubois & King 

 
*Curb/drainage for segment C is $22,000 ; for segments A/B is $12,444 
 
Segment Areas 
Segment E- Milton Diner to Clifford Drive (not included in this project) 
Segment D- Nancy Drive to Milton Vet 
Segment C- Chrisemily Lane to Milton Auto 
Segment B- Ravine nearby Marty’s Auto 
Segment A- Just past Merrill Lane to Haydenberry Drive, over large ravine at Bombardier Corner 
 
 



Resolution 
                                                            TOWN OF MILTON 

 
2016 VTrans Bike/Pedestrian Grant Application  

 
WHEREAS, The Milton Selectboard accepted Policy 96-01 requiring all grants, grant applications, and offer of 
grants to be approved by the Selectboard at any regular or special meeting of the Selectboard; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Staff requests the Selectboard approve the application, for the design and construction of sidewalk 
to fill existing gaps on Route 7 South  creating a continuous network from Haydenberry Drive to Nancy Drive; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, the grant program requires a 20% match in funds, matching project funds for the grant would come 
from the collection of impact fees in FY ’17 – FY ‘20; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the total cost of the sidewalk project is currently estimated at $962,621 with the Town’s 20% local 
match is estimated to be $192,524 to be funded using the collection of impact fees; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Town agrees to provide ongoing maintenance, including snow removal, on the sidewalk 
construction as new public infrastructure; and,  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Selectboard approves the 2016 VTrans Bike/Pedestrian Grant Application and 
authorizes the Town Manager to sign the necessary application material.  
 
Dated at Milton, Vermont this ______ day of _________, 2016 

MILTON SELECTBOARD 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Darren Adams, Chairperson   Ken Nolan, Vice Chairperson  

 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
John Bartlett, Clerk    John Cushing      

_______________________________  
John Palasik     

  
Filed with the Milton Town Clerk’s Office this ______ day of _______, 2016 
 
Attest: _______________________________________________________________   
                                                 Milton Town Clerk 



2016 VTrans Bicycle and Pedestrian Program Application 

1. Project Title:

2. Applicant Name(s):

3. Project Contact Info:

a. Name:

b. Mailing Address:

c. Town:

d. Zip Code:

e. Email Address:

f. Phone Number:

4. Fiscal Information:

a. Accounting System Automated  Manual  Combination 

b. DUNS #

c. Fiscal Year End Month

5. RPC(s)

6. Project Type being applied for (may apply for all three):

Scoping Design/Construction Small-scale Construction 

7. Primary Facility Type: Sidewalk Shared-use Path Bike Lane

Shoulder 

Other (Please describe) 

8. Approximate project length in feet (Federally funded design/construction projects only):

9. Project Description:  Please give a brief description of the project (100 words or less.)

Detailed information should be submitted as part of addressing the selection criteria. Be

sure to include identifying streets or landmarks that the proposed project links at either

end (e.g. New concrete sidewalk with granite curbing on Main St. from Elm St. to Maple

St.).

Scoping Project

Scoping Small-scaleDesign/Const



2016 VTrans Bicycle and Pedestrian Program Application 

Design/Construction 

Small-scale Construction 

10. Project Location Map: Applications must include a map(s) of the project area.  The

map should be clearly annotated to indicate the project being applied for and its

relationship to existing bicycle or pedestrian networks.  Color photos are useful but not

required.  If the project is within or adjacent to a designated downtown or village center,

clearly indicate the relationship of the proposed project to the boundary of the

designated area.

Map included? Yes No 

11. Estimated Project Costs:

Scoping Projects

Consultant Costs (to develop scoping report)

Administration/Local Project Manager Costs

(Costs associated with oversight of the project, estimated

at 10% of Scoping report development)

TOTAL SCOPING AMOUNT APPLIED FOR (including 50% local share) 

Large Design/Construction Projects 

Engineering  
(Costs associated with survey, plans development, permitting, 
development of bid documents, bid analysis) 

jkaplan
Line

jkaplan
Line

jkaplan
Line



2016 VTrans Bicycle and Pedestrian Program Application 

(Includes cost of appraisals, property owner compensation and 
associated legal fees) 

Construction 

(Cost of paying contractors to build projects, including a 
reasonable contingency. Please provide as much detail/backup 
information as available to support the construction estimate.) 

Construction Inspection  

(Cost to provide oversight of contractor during construction.) 

Administration/Local Project Manager Costs  
(Cost associated with municipal municipal oversight of the project, 
estimated to be a minimum of be 10% of total PE, ROW and 
Construction phases.) 
TOTAL DESIGN/CONSTRUCTION AMOUNT APPLIED FOR 

(including 20% local share) 

Small-Scale Construction Projects 

Construction 

 (Small-scale projects may be constructed with local forces – provide backup on 
estimated labor, materials and equipment costs) 

TOTAL SMALL-SCALE PROJECT AMOUNT APPLIED FOR 

(including 50% local share)  

12. Have you received any other grant funding for this project?  Please describe and
include the source of funding.

Right of Way

jkaplan
Line

jkaplan
Line

jkaplan
Line

jkaplan
Line

jkaplan
Line



2016 VTrans Bicycle and Pedestrian Program Application 

IF YES, please indicate whether local funds will be used to make up the shortfall or if the 
project scope will be reduced. 

Keep Scope of project the same and make up shortfall 
with other funds 

Reduce project scope – Describe and provide cost 
breakdown (attach backup with supporting materials, if 
necessary) 

Note:  Partial awards will ONLY be considered for large-scale construction projects. 

If the project scope is to be reduced, document what part of the project you would accept 

partial funding for and break out the costs associated with that part or segment.  Attach 

additional pages if necessary.  If adequate information is not provided, partial funding will 

not be considered. 

14. When did you hold a public meeting about this project within the last 
year?(Please enclose documentation of meeting publication and a meeting 

summary.) PUBLIC MEETING DATE

Will you accept an award less than you applied for?13. YES NO



 

 
TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205 

 
Town Manager’s Office   • 43 Bombardier Road • 802-893-6655 • FAX: 893-1005 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: VTrans 2016 Bike/Ped Grant Application Review Committee  
 
FROM:  Erik Wells, Director of Administration Town of Milton 
 
RE: 2016 VTrans Bike/Pedestrian Grant Application Evaluative Criteria  
 
DATE:  July 15, 2016 
 
Review Committee Members: 
 
Thank you for your consideration of the Town of Milton’s request for funding to construct 
3,830 linear feet of sidewalk to fill in four gaps existing along US Route 7 South in Town.  
 
This project is identified in the 2013 Town of Milton Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 
Section 2, which calls out the construction of a complete sidewalk network from “the old 
Hannaford’s Shopping Plaza to Checkerberry Square by 2013.” Sections of the sidewalk 
were built in that time period by developers leaving the gaps this project would look to fill 
in. Without a complete sidewalk network on both sides of Rte. 7 leading to the central 
commercial district it presents safety challenges and hinders Milton’s growth as a walkable 
community.  
 
When complete, filling in these 3,830 feet of sidewalk gaps will enable residents to walk 
from Nancy Drive to Rene’s market on Route 7 South completing a 1.8 mile sidewalk 
network. The section on Route 7 South where the four gaps exist would serve a densely 
populated residential area, creating a complete sidewalk network to the town core 
commercial center and Milton High School.  
 
The project budget was developed using construction costs and guidance from Dubois & 
King Engineering Firm who partnered with LandWorks to produce the overall sidewalk and 
streetscape conceptual design as part of the larger Milton 4D Project (Defining Downtown 
from the Diner to the Dam). The backup for the construction costs is provided in this 
application. Guidance was provided by Dubois & King to use $5,000 per parcel for right-of-
way acquisition in the estimate (18 parcels potentially requiring easements), and $30,000 
for archeological based on the desktop review (excerpt included). The additional budgeting 
was calculated using the VTrans benchmark percentages for engineering, inspection and 
local project management. Construction contingency was based on 10% of the total.  
 
This project is not within a designated downtown center. The Town of Milton anticipates 
applying for that designation in the future.  



 

 
 

 
According to data from the State of Vermont crash database, there were 55 vehicle 
accidents on Route 7 between Nancy Drive and Haydenberry Drive where the sidewalk 
gaps exists from 2011 through 2015. This data demonstrates a high risk for the 0.9 mile 
stretch of roadway. Through observation, a number of people walk on the side of the road 
along Route 7 South with the absence of a full sidewalk, putting them at risk in a high crash 
area. 
 
The M4D conceptual design was completed in July 2016. A component of the design was 
addressing the sidewalk gaps that exist along the Route 7 Corridor from which this project 
was created. Included with the design was a constraints memo (excerpts included) 
produced to address permitting and right of way acquisition. Gap Segments A and B have 
potential impacts to wetlands (defined as wetland D and wetland E respectively) are likely 
to be determined as Class II. The report states “Impacts to the wetlands and their buffers 
will need to be permitted under both the Vermont Wetlands Rules and the Corps of 
Engineers wetland regulations. Justifications for the location of the sidewalk segments 
within wetlands will need to be presented during the permitting process (e.g., connection 
to other existing sidewalk segments, well-beaten footpaths indicating high demand).” 
 
I connected with the right of way and permitting division of VTrans and went over the 
review required for the State to grant improvements in its ROW. The project falls within 
the majority of the VTrans Right of Way on Route 7. Easements may be needed 
according to Dubois & King because the sidewalk may be raised up above the existing 
ground, and fill slopes may extend outside the VTrans ROW onto private property 
minimally. There also exists the possibility of existing utility relocations that cannot 
occur, requiring the sidewalk to deviate out of the VTrans ROW in segments. There are 
18 parcels where this potential exists, and that cost factor has been included in the 
administrative portion of the budget and its methodology addressed earlier in this 
memo. Until the final design and engineering is complete on this project the exact ROW 
impacts cannot be determined at this time. With that in mind, it was decided as 
premature to approach the landowners in the affected parcels.  
 
Segment A and Segment B require the sidewalk segments to cross small ravines. This work 
has been budgeted in the construction estimate. These are the most challenging gap 
segments to address, but also the most critical to create the complete sidewalk network. 
 
This funding request is a component of the larger Milton 4D Project (Defining Downtown 
from the Diner to the Dam) a sidewalk and streetscaping project poised to improve the 
heart and hub of the community. On Town Meeting Day 2015 the voters of Milton 
approved a tax increment financing (TIF) bond in the amount of $2.4 million to support this 
work. The first step in implementation of the project was a conceptual design. The Town 
contracted with the team of LandWorks and Dubois & King to complete this task over FY 
‘16. The conceptual design process held three public engagement sessions to gather 
feedback in design’s formation. The overall project was messaged throughout the 
community at a number of venues and using a wide variety dissemination means. The 



 

 
 

community of Milton has provided support for the overall M4D project through the 
bond vote in 2015 and at the public engagement sessions.  Through the conceptual 
design a cost estimate was arrived at that exceeded the voter approved bonding authority. 
A major component of this project is filling numerous sidewalk gaps along the corridor, and 
that is where a substantial amount of investment is required as identified in the conceptual 
design. I submit this grant application on behalf of the Town of Milton as a means to secure 
an additional revenue stream for this project. This section of sidewalk gaps presents the 
most challenging from a public safety and workability network standpoint. I have also 
included a partial funding alternative for the review committee’s consideration if the full 
award is not possible that would fund sidewalk at Segments A and B.  
 
I have prepared this memo and exhibit listing to ensure all the components of the 
recommended outline for bike/ped scoping study (attachment A of the guide book) are 
addressed.  
 
Exhibits included with the grant application are excerpts or the entirety of the following: 

• Milton 4D Project Conceptual Design  
o Milton 4D Project Design Constraints Memo 
o Conceptual Design Cost Estimates Entire M4D Project Workbook  

 Specific Costs for this Grant Broken Out onto Spreadsheet  
o Conceptual Design Cost Estimates Backup Documentation  

• Route 7 Corridor Study (Draft version, final coming out this month from CCRPC) 
• 2013 Milton Comprehensive Plan Chapter 7: Transportation  
• Map of the Project area (required) 
• Selectboard meeting warning and draft minutes (required) 
• Selectboard resolution authorizing application (required) 
• Letter of Support from the Selectboard (required) 
• Letter of Support from the CCRPC (required) 
• Notification of application to the DTA (required) 

 
All exhibits address the sidewalk gap segments along Route 7 requested for construction 
with this project in the following manner: Segment D, Segment C, Segment B and Segment 
A.  
 







Milton Police Department 
37 Bombardier Road 

Milton, VT 05468 
(802) 893-6171 Voice 
{802) 893-6032 Fax 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 

FROM: Chief Brett Van Noordt f!t/Jt 
DATE: June 25, 2016 
SUBJECT: Governor's Highway Safety 2017 Radar Speed Sign Grant 

The Governor's Highway Safety Program has offered the Milton Police a $10,000 radar speed 
sign grant. This grant process is a data driven program that will award money to agencies to 
assist them in the purchase of digital radar speed signs. These agencies must have high 
incident locations and a commitment to identifying goals and implementing countermeasures 
to reduce speed on the targeted roadways. 

This awarded grant money will be used to purchase new digital radar speed signs. This radar 
speed detection device will assist with the continued education of the public on the dangers of 
speeding, and allow us to track high volume speeding locations/times. This device will allow us 
to be more efficient with speed related enforcement and the ultimate goal of preventing 
crashes on Milton's roadways. 

There is no match for the Town of Milton with this grant. However, the Town of Milton will be 
responsible for the maintenance and repair of the equipment purchased and must make it 
available for inspection during GHSP site visits. Awards will be up to a maximum of $10, 000 
per applicant. 

We would like permission from the Select Board to accept this funding. 

Page 1 



TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT 
Legislative and Fiscal Analysis of Requested Selectboard Actions 

Date: June 25, 2016 

Legislative Analysis: 

DIGITAL RADAR SPEED SIGN GRANT AWARD FROM THE 
GOVERNOR'S HIIGHWAY SAFETY COUNCIL 

The Governor's Highway Safety Council has offered the Milton Police a $10,000 radar speed sign grant. 
This grant process is a data driven program that will award money to agencies to assist them in the purchase 
of digital radar speed signs. These agencies must have high incident locations and a commitment to 
identifying goals and implementing countermeasures to reduce speed on the targeted roadways. 

This awarded grant money will be used to purchase new digital radar speed signs. This radar speed detection 
device will assist with the continued education of the public on the dangers of speeding, and allow us to 
track high volume speeding locations/times. This device will allow us to be more efficient with speed 
related enforcement and the ultimate goal of preventing crashes on Milton' s roadways. 

With the combined effort of traffic enforcement and education, we can continue to save to lives on Milton' s 
roadways. 

As you know, Enforcement and Educational programs save lives. However, every year thousands of people 
die on highways nationwide due to a lack of basic knowledge, and attitudes toward Highway Safety. In the 
spirit of working towards "Zero Deaths" and raising our State' s awareness of Highway Safe, this grant will 
help us educate the public in the dangers of speeding. 

Fiscal Analysis: 

This grant will allow the Milton Police Department to continue an aggressive proactive approach to traffic 
safety enforcement and education. There is no match for the Town of Milton with this grant. However, the 
Town of Milton will be responsible for the maintenance and repair of the equipment purchased and must 
make it available for inspection during GHSP site visits. Awards will be up to a maximum of $10, 000 per 
applicant. 

Recommended Action: 

Approve the resolution authorizing the Town Manager or his designee to sign the necessary documents to 
accept and expend the award. 

Brett Van Noordt June 25, 2016 



Resolution 
TOWN OF MILTON 

VT Governors Highway Safety Council- Digital Speed Sign Grant 
Authorization to accept and expend the funds awarded, 

and make the necessary budget amendments 

WHEREAS, the Milton Selectboard accepted Policy 96-01 which requires a resolution be adopted by them at a duly 
scheduled Selectboard meeting for acceptance and expenditure of state/federal funds; and, 

WHEREAS, the Staff requests the Milton Selectboard to approve the acceptance of t he VT Governor's Highway Safety 
Council - Digital Radar Speed Sign grant, and to secure the awarded approximate $10,000 in grant funding. This 
grant funding will then be used for the purchase of new digital radar speed signs. 

WHEREAS, there is no matching funds required by the Town of Milton. However, the Town of Milton will be 
responsible for the maintenance and repair of the equipment purchased and must make it available for inspection 
during GHSP site visits. Awards will be up to a maximum of $10, 000 per applicant. 

WHEREAS, Staff requests the Selectboard to authorize t he Town Manager to execute the necessary documents to 
accept and expend the grant funds awarded, and make the necessary budget amendments. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Milton Selectboard authorizes the Town Manager to execute the necessary 
documents to accept t he VT Governors Highway Safety Council- Digital radar speed sign funds through the VT 
Governors Highway Safety Council, upon receipt accept said funds, approve the expenditure of said funds for the 
Educational Grant and make the necessary budget amendment(s). 

Dated at Milton, Vermont this __ day of-----' 2016 

MILTON SELECTBOARD 

Darren Adams, Chairperson Ken Nolan, Vice-Chairperson 

John Bartlett, Clerk John Palasik 

John Cushing 

Filed with the Milton Town Clerk's Office this ___ day of 2016 

Attest: ___________________________________ ___ 

M ilton Assistant Town Clerk 



VERMONT 

Applicant Agency: Milton Police De~artment 

Address: 37 Bombardier Road 

Milton VT 05468 

Authorizing Official: Brett Van Noordt 

Signature: 

Project Director: Paul locke 

Telephone: (802) 893-6171 

E-Mail: Paul. Locke(Q}vermont.gov 

Federal Tax ld #: 03-6000573 _Expires: 

Vermont Business 
Account Number 042101 

Fiscal Entity: Iowo of Milton 

Fax: 

Application for 2016 Radar Speed 
Trailer/Sign Funding 

Governor's Highway Safety Program 
Agency of Transportation 
One National Life Drive 
Montpelier, VT 05633 

County: Chittenden 

Title: Chief of Police 

Date: April12 2016 

Title: Sergeant 

(802) 893-6032 

09-15-16 Duns#: 006615041 

Address: 43 Bombardier Road I Milton VT 05468 

Fiscal Year: Start: 07/01 End: 06/30 

Fiscal Agent: John Gifford Title: Finance Director 

-

Signature: Email: Jgifford@town.milton.vt.us 

Problem Statement: 
One of the main causes of crashes is excessive speed. Reducing crashes that are a result of speed 
is a priority for the Vermont Governor's Highway Safety Program. The five-year average in 2014 
was 22.2 fatalities per year. The projected goal is to decrease speed-related fatalities 5.51 percent 
from the five-year average of 22.2 in 2010 - 2014 to a five-year average of 21.0 by December 31, 
2016. 

The speed enforcement program will be a data driven mission that will award speed signs to LEA's 
who have high incident locations and a commitment to identifying goals and implementing 
countermeasures to reduce speed on the targeted roadways. 

1 



Application for 2016 Radar Speed Trailer/Sign Funding 

2. Project Title: 

Speed/Aggressive Driving Enforcement- Radar Speed Trailer/Sign Equipment Funding 

3. Using crash and citation data identify and list up to three (3) problem locations in your area that 
have excessive speed incidents: 

Over the course of the last few years the Milton Police Department has seen a severe increase in multiple different 
!major motor vehicle infractions occurring on Milton roadways. Some of these major infractions include the 
following between 2013 and present day. DUI arrests have increased by 140%, and excessive speed charges have 
increased by 150%. We continue to see a steady increase of speeding, distracted driving, as well as other 
aggressive driving infractions such as following too closely and limitations on passing. According to our statistics 
from 2014 to present date the following increase trends are what we are seeing: local road speeding are on an 
ncrease by 11%, state highway speeding (Route 7 and Route 2) are on an increase of 46%, vehicles following too 

closely to other vehicles are on an increase by 29%, vehicle passing unsafely (limitations on passing) are on an 
increase of 129% as well as distracted driving where operators are using cell phones are increasing by 300%. As 
well as we see that US Route 7 and East Road in our town seems to be the highest volume of traffic violations. All 
these violations untimely related to the main cause of vehicle crashes. 

We also see over these same years our crash statistics show US Route 7, East Road and Middle Road as high crash 
~ocations. These are some of the same roads we see a majority of aggressive driving on with ticket statistics. Very 
!noticeably crashes on US Route 7 have increase 68% just from last year alone. 

4. List contributing factors to your speeding/aggressive driving in your problem 
locations such as demographics, proximity to schools, work zones etc: 

Part of our contributing factors to our speeding problem is the area on US Route 7 between Lamoille Terrace 
and Villemaire Lane is a school zone. This area is not marked by any type of school zone signage, but is at the 
entrance of the Milton High School. This area is posted at 25 MPH, but is surrounded on both ends by 35 
MPH speed zones. It is the goal of this grant and the town to make this section of US Route 7 near the Milton 
High school more visible and official School Zone. This will slow traffic down and avoid accidents. 

5. How will you measure your progress using speed sign data before and after to evaluate that 
your speed sign is effective? For example: "Our agency will measure the number of 
speeders per day to identify the days of the week with the most problems and compare 
these numbers monthly." 

Our agency will use speed detection signs to monitor and track vehicle speeds during time of day, day 
of the week compared to non-school days IE: Weekends, holidays, etc. We will also measure our 
progress through ticket statistics in this location comparing to years prior. 



Application for 2016 Radar Speed Trailer/Sign Funding 

6. What countermeasures/strategies will you employ to address the problems of speed in your 
identified locations in addition to the use of the speed sign? 

As stated in #5 our agency will use speed detection signs to monitor and track vehicle speeds during time of 
day, day of the week compared to non-school days IE: Weekends, holidays, etc. We will then take this data 
and adjust patrol and enforcement techniques around these high violation times. As well as hopefully the 
radar speed signs will also deter and remind drivers of their speed. 

Governor's Highway Safety will review the application in conjunction with VTrans generated data to identify the 
targeted high risk areas and confirm the evidence based need. Consideration will also be given to LEA's who 
have a commitment to the project goals and implementing countermeasures to reduce speed on the targeted 
roadways. Applications will be reviewed by Law Enforcement Officers, Law Enforcement Liaisons, and the 
Governor's Highway Safety program coordinator. 

GHSP requests that prior to the application the LE Agency review the specifications for the proposed 
type of speed trailer/sign eligible for purchase with awarded grant funds and confirm that it can be 
deployed effectively and maintained adequately, including collecting, storing and reporting data that is 
generated during use. The sub-recipient of the award will be responsible for the maintenance and 
repair of the equipment purchased and must make it available for inspection during GHSP site visits. 
Awards will be up to a maximum of $10, 000 per applicant. 

Instructions: 

Please complete the application form, sign and submit to: 

evelyn.mcfarlane@vermont.gov 

Applications are due May 15thth 

Applicants will be notified on or before May 31st 





7/612016 Milton VT OS 75 quote.xls 

Advanced Emergency Products 151 Mill Rock Rd. East, Old Saybrook CT 06475 
\'\ 

Decatur. 
electronics 

Customer Info: Milton Police Dept 

Quotation To: Sgt Paul Locke 

Phone: 

Fax: 

OnSite 75 Radar Pole Mount Si~ 
QUOTATION 

Email: l!vennont.goy 

!Thank you for your interest in Decatur Electronics, Inc. and our OnSite 75 pole mount sign. The On Site75 is constructed of hand worked, U.S. 
brattect heavy duty ultra light aluminum frame and features oven baked white powder coat paint and weighs less than 50 pounds. The On Site 75 
has 18" digits visible from 1,000 ft and has a flashing adjustable violation alert. The On site 75 is powered by a 55 watt solar panel and 12 val 
rechargeable battery with an on/off switch located inside the dust and waterproof control box. The EZ Stat statistics package is compatible with the 
On Site 75 pole sign. The unit comes with adjustable bands which will fit from a 'Z' pole to a 10" pole and includes a vinyl coated 48"1ocking cable 
for added securitv. 

Quantity Unit Price Subtotals 

On Site 75 Pole Mount LIJ $ 2,895.00 $ 2,895.00 
Options 
Blue Tooth for EZ Stat $250.00 
EZ Stat Traffic Counter $ 795.00 $ 
Solar $900.00 $ 
Sub-Total $ 2,895.00 

Tax (If Applicable) 0.00% $ 

Shipping FOB Phoenix AZ TBD $ 175.00 $ 175.00 

Total: (equal to all selections) $ 3,070.00 

Terms are Net 30 days. 

Contract type: Contract#: 
Comments:) 

Quote Prepared by: Bill Merritt 802-734-1661 :Date Prepared 7/5'2016 Date Expires: 

Purchase Order # Date Printed Name Signature 

V1s1f our webSite at: www.decaturradar.com 

10/5'2016 

https:/lbn1-excel.officeapps.live.corn/x/jayouts/xlprintviEM!.aspx?&NaAuth=1&sessionld=12e8f3e410c9511.D89.1.V25.37161mEsmeReg06j55XVAc71314.5.en-... 1/1 



Advanced Emergency Products 151 Mill Rock Rd. East, Old Saybrook CT 06475 

Customer Info: 

Quotation To: 

On Site 75 Pole Mount 
Options 
Blue Tooth for EZ Stat 
EZ Stat Traffic Counter 
Solar 
Sub-Total 

Tax (If Applicable) 

Milton Police Dept 

Sgt Paul Locke 

Shipping FOB Phoenix AZ. 

Total: (equal to all selections) 

Terms are Net 30 days. 

Contract type: 
Comments: I 

Quote Prepared by: Bill Merritt 802-734-1661 

Purchase Order# Date 

Visit our website at: www.decaturradar.com 

Contract#: 

OnSite 75 Radar Pole Mount Sign 
QUOTATION 

Phone: 

Fax: 

Email: bvermont.gov 

$250.00 
$ 795.00 $ 

$900.00 $ 
$ 2,895.00 

0.00% $ 

TBD $ 175.00 $ 175.00 

$ 3,070.00 

Date Prepared: 7/5/2016 Date Expires: 10/5/2016 

Printed Name Si nature 

34001 F22 3/22/06 TRC 



Milton Police Department 
37 Bombardier Road 

Milton, VT 05468 
(802) 893·6111 Voice 
(802) 893-6032 Fax 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Milton Selectboard 
THROUGH: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 
FROM: Chief Brett Van Noordt Cltl1t 
DATE: July 6, 2016 
SUBJECT: Permission to Order Two (2) Police Cruisers 

The Police Department is requesting permission to order and purchase two (2} police cruisers 
with funds from the FY: 17 Capital Budget. There are adequate funds available for this 
purchase. The cruisers will be 2017 Ford Utility vehicles. 

We currently have one cruiser, a 2013 Ford Taurus (AAE958}, with 112,708 miles on it now and 
a 2014 Ford Taurus {AAE957) with 84,562 miles on it. The one with 81,000 miles on it will have 
well over 100,000 miles when it comes time to replace it. 

The cruiser with 84,562 miles on it recently had to go to the dealer to replace the water pump, 
fix a solenoid and possibly an issue with a catalytic converter. The cost of that repair was 
$1,700. Another cruiser we have since got rid of had the brakes blow out when an officer was 
driving it. 

The impact of postponing the purchase of two cruisers in FY17 will be very high cruiser repair 
bills and possibly having to ground a cruiser for safety reasons or because it is too expensive to 
repair. 

We believe both vehicles will have very high mileage by the time the two cruisers are ordered, 
assembled, transported to Vermont and delivered to us. Therefore, there will be another 
delayed timeframe due to us ordering the cruisers this late in the year. 

Page 1 



Equipment Code Price 

2017 Utility Interceptor in all Black shipped to dealer $25,547.00 

Standard wheels STD 

3.7V6 99R/44C STD 

Front License Plate Bracket Front 153 STD 

Dark car feature-Lamp disabled when door opens 43D $17.00 

Dome Light-Red/White 17T $45.00 

Spot Light Driver only LED 51R $345.00 

Rear View Camera (rearview mirror location) 21B STD 

Reverse Sensing 76R $240.00 

Sync Blue Tooth 53M $258.00 

Rear Door Handles/Locks Inoperable 68G $30.00 

Rear Windows Power Delete 18W $30.00 

Keyed Alike (1284x) 59B $45.00 

Heated External Mirrors 549 $53.00 

Noise Suppression Bonds GOR $87.00 

Title/Transfer of Registration $58.00 

Total $26,755.00 



Capital Budget for Two 2017 Police Interceptor Utility Vehicles -

Vendor Vendor# Item PO# Item Number Item Price Quantity Total Amount Mtl.lal 
Formula Ford (Chuck Williams) 33410 2017 Police Interceptor Utility (AAE957) CAR $26,755.00 1 $26,755.00 -· 

Yipes 87365 Decals for New Cruiser N/A $1,845.27 1 $1,845.27 
Yipes 87365 Removal of old Decals $468.00 1 $468.00 
Yipes 87365 Installation of Equipment/Rhino Push Bumper Spray N/A $4,354.00 1 $4,354.00 
Yipes 87365 Removal of old Equipment/radios/LPR $390.00 1 $390.00 ' 

Yipes 87365 Installation of Radios $562.00 1 $562.00 
Adamson lnd 17024 Whelen Light Bar bracket Kit $57.00 1 $57.00 
Adamson lnd 17024 Dvnamax 100W S_Qeaker W/Universal Bracket SK179 $222.90 1 $222.90 
Adamson lnd 17024 Push Bumper for 2017 Interceptor SS120 $279.95 1 $279.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Weather Tech Floor Mat ACW167 $89.95 1 $89.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Cargo Barrier SS0043 $349.95 1 $349.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Barrier Transfer Kit $194.95 1 $194.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Recessed Lower Extension Panels for Barrier SS005 $154.90 1 $154.90 
Adamson lnd 17024 Passenger/Driver side window barrier PTSLWBFIU $199.95 1 $199.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Center Console 14" Low Profile MTCVS14001NSE $249.95 1 $249.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Whelen lon LED (pushbar lights) GR329 $105.60 2 $211.20 
Adamson lnd 17024 Whelen lon LED (surface mount lights) GR373 $105.60 2 $211.20 
Adamson lnd 17024 Wig wag system GR282 $54.95 1 $54.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Mud Flaps AC6418 $34.95 2 $69.90 

, .,, 

Adamson lnd 17024 Window shades AC 94293 $79.95 1 $79.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 ShippingforeQuipmentAAE957 $150.00 1 $150.00 .. , 

Galls 34300 Flashlight $115.00 1 $115.00 .;'_ 

Galls 34300 Water Rescue Kit $128.70 1 $128.70 
Galls 34300 Tactical First Aid Kit $48.16 1 $48.16 
Galls 34300 Active Shooter Bag $16.73 1 $16.73 
Galls 34300 18" Folding Traffic Cones $17.00 7 $119.00 
Galls 34300 Rescue Spot Light/Rechargeable $138.00 1 $138.00 
Galls 34300 Measuring wheel $40.91 1 $40.91 

$37,557.47 
Formula Ford (Chuck Williams) 33410 2017 Police Interceptor Utility (AAE958) CAR $26,755.00 1 $26,755.00 

Yipes 87365 Decals for New Cruiser N/A $1,845.27 1 $1,845.27 
Yipes 87365 Installation of Equipment/Rhino Push Bumper Spray N/A $4,354.00 1 $4,354.00 
Yipes 87365 Removal of old Decals $468.00 1 $468.00 

::,<···· •''t''' 

Yipes 87365 Removal of old Equipment/radios $390.00 1 $390.00 
. ,, . . ·;··. 
' 

Yipes 87365 Installation of Radios $562.00 1 $562.00 
WatchGuard Video 74649 New WatchGuard system $4,820.00 1 $4,820.00 

,--, , .. ,, 

Adamson lnd 17024 Whelen Light Bar bracket Kit $57.00 1 $57.00 
Adamson lnd 17024 Dvnamax 1 OOW Speaker W/Universal Bracket SK179 $222.90 1 $222.90 
Adamson lnd 17024 Push Bumper for 2017 Interceptor SS120 $279.95 1 $279.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Weather Tech Floor Mat ACW167 $89.95 1 $89.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Cargo Barrier SS0043 $349.95 1 $349.95 

7/6/2016 1:42PM 



Capital Budget for Two 2017 Police Interceptor Utility Vehicles 

Adamson lnd 17024 Barrier transfer kit $194.95 1 $194.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Recessed Lower Extension Panels for Barrier SS005 $154.90 1 $154.90 
Adamson lnd 17024 Passenger/Driver side window barrier PTSLWBFIU $199.95 1 $199.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Center Console 14" Low Profile MTCVS14001NSE $249.95 1 $249.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Whelen lon LED (pushbar lights) GR329 $105.60 2 $211.20 
Adamson lnd 17024 Whelen lon LED (surface mount lights) GR373 $105.60 2 $211.20 
Adamson lnd 17024 Wigwag system GR282 $54.95 1 $54.95 
Adamson lnd 17024 Mud Flaps AC6418 $34.95 2 $69.90 
Adamson lnd 17024 Window shades AC 94293 $79.95 1 $79.95 
Adamson lnd Take down/Alley light Upgrade kit $78.00 1 $78.00 
Adamson lnd 17024 Shipping for EQuipment AAE958 $150.00 1 $150.00 

Galls 34300 Flashlight $115.00 1 $115.00 
Galls 34300 Water Rescue Kit $128.70 1 $128.70 
Galls 34300 Tactical First Aid Kit $48.16 1 $48.16 
Galls 34300 Active Shooter Bag $16.73 1 $16.73 
Galls 34300 18" Folding Traffic Cones $17.00 7 $119.00 
Galls 34300 Rescue Spot Light/Rechargeable $138.00 1 $138.00 
Galls 34300 Measuring wheel $40.91 1 $40.91 

TOTAL= $42,455.47 

Total from Capital Budget $74,000.00 
Trade in 957 $3,500.00 
Trade in 958 $3,500.00 

Total Cost of 957 and 958 $80,012.94 

Amount Left Over ~987.06 

7/6/2016 2 1:42PM 



PLATE NUMBER VIN YEAR/MAKE/MODEL 
Date of Proposed Useful Life from Mileage on 

Acquired 
Trade-In date of Purchase 05-18-16 

DTR706 1 FAHP2MK2FG112598 
2015 Ford Taurus 

September 1, 2019 3-4 years 21,867 
Interceptor 

MN385 1 GNSK3EC3FR306404 2015 Chevrolet Tahoe September 1, 2019 3-4 years 11,785 

MK121 IFM5K8AR6GGB54668 2016 Ford Taurus Utility September 1, 2019 3-4 years 7,082 1/15/2016 

MH529 IFM5K8AR6GGC67 409 2016 Ford Taurus Utility September 1, 2019 3-4 years 1,636 4/30/2016 

MN722 1 GNSK2E07BR3377 46 2011 Chevrolet Tahoe September 1, 2017 3-4 years 60,620 

AAE958 1 FAHP2M84DG143238 
2013 Ford Taurus 

September 1, 2016 3-4years 112,708 
Interceptor 

ESA354 1D8HN54P388135760 2008 Dodge Grand Caravan September 1, 2018 3-4 Years 67,713 

MH528 1 FM5K8AROEGA28936 
2014 Ford Taurus 

September 1, 2017 3-4 years 50,530 
Utility (K-9) 

AAE957 1FAHP2MK5EG101111 
2014 Ford Taurus 

September 1, 2016 3-4years 84,562 
Interceptor 

MP260 1A9S30ES5C1872090 2012 Decatur Speed Cart September 1, 2023 10 Years 0 

Prepared by Brett Van Noordt on 07/06/2016 































 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 4        June 21, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
June 21, 2016 at 6PM 2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair; Kenneth Nolan, Vice Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; 5 
John Palasik, Member; John Cushing, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present: None 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; Erik Wells, Director- Administration & 8 
Community Affairs; Kym Duchesneau, Nathan Lavallee, WWW Superintendent; Dustin Keelty, DPW 9 
Operations Supervisor; John Gifford, Town Treasurer/ Interim Finance Director  10 
 11 
Others Present: None 12 
 13 
I. Call to Order –  Adams called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM 14 
 15 
II. Flag Salute – Adams led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag.  16 

 17 
III. Agenda Review- MCYC Discussion to be rescheduled, Manager’s Update added 18 

 19 
IV. Public Forum- None 20 
 21 
V. Public Hearing 22 

A. FY ’17 – FY ’22 Capital Improvement Plan 23 
Adams opened the public hearing at 6:03 PM. Barlow Casey shared the final version of the CIP 24 
document. She noted that the $25,000 for rescue breathing apparatus should be removed from 25 
FY ’19, the project total is $25,000. The projects to be funded through the collection of impact 26 
fees in FY ’17 is based on the historical impact fees rates from FY ’09- FY ’15, producing a levy of 27 
$241,551. This final version of the CIP contained some funding shifting to attain that dollar 28 
amount. She noted $45,000 in impact fees collected toward a potential match for a grant 29 
application to fill in sidewalk gaps. The Board asked that the hot box and bobcat be eliminated 30 
from the plan altogether, they are not programmed for funding. Possible future discussion 31 
items. Also the Haydenberry multi-use path was eliminated as that project is not scheduled for 32 
FY ’17. The Board asked for a vehicle inventory this fall with mileage for the fleet. Adams closed 33 
the public hearing at 6:35. Cushing moved to adopt the FY ’17 – FY ’22 CIP with the minor 34 
changes mentioned. Second by Bartlett. Approved Unanimously.  35 
 36 

VI. Discussions  37 
A. Impact Fee Rates for FY ‘17 38 
 Barlow Casey stated the impact fees for FY ’17 are proposed at $4,392 for a full fee and 39 

$3,294 for a reduced fee. Cushing moved to adopt the impact fees for FY ’17. Second by 40 
Bartlett. Approved Unanimously. 41 

 42 
B. Recreation Facilities Grant for Basketball Court Project 43 

Duchesneau explained this is a grant the Town has received in the past from the State of  44 
          Vermont. The project is in the adopted CIP for FY ’17 from the earlier in the meeting to  45 
  resurface and improve the basketball court area in Bombardier Park. The grant requires 46 
 no matching funds from the Town and could provide up to $11,000 for the project. Cushing 47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 4        June 21, 2016 
 

 moved to approve the Recreation Facilities Grant Application. Second by Bartlett. Approved 48 
 Unanimously. 49 

 50 
C. Water/Wastewater FY ’17 Budget & Rates 51 

Superintendent Lavallee explained The FY17 Water Fund Budget is proposed at $900,113. 52 
The conclusions and recommendations from the rate study conducted by Aldrich + Elliot in 53 
2015 were applied to fund the budget. The result was a 3.0% increase to the base rate and 54 
a 3.0% increase to the metered rate. The proposed rates for FY 17 are $36.95/unit/quarter 55 
+ $3.65/1000 gallons and $95.26/unit/quarter unmetered rate. The increase for a typical 56 
household is $11.36/year.  57 
 58 
The FY17 Wastewater Fund Budget is proposed at $1,254,954. While a rate study was not 59 
performed for the Wastewater Fund, the conclusions and recommendations from the 60 
Water Rate Study were applied to fund the budget. The result was a 3.0% increase to the 61 
base rate and a 3.0% increase to the metered rate. The proposed rates for FY 17 are 62 
$44.37/unit/quarter + $4.35/1000 gallons and $113.92/unit/quarter unmetered rate. The 63 
increase for a typical household is $13.54/year. 64 
 65 
Lavallee explained the rate increase in the water budget would help build the reserve and 66 
fund deferred capital items and repairs. The Board discussed the proposed rate increase 67 
and the fund balance it would create. The projected use for water has decreased due to the 68 
recent repairs in the system leaks, Lavallee stated. Nolan stated fund balance increase 69 
could also be achieved by the projected decrease in use, and can’t see raising the rates 70 
when the projected use is slated to decrease. It’s something that could be revisited in 6 71 
months. Discussion was held to put items into the capital budget, like a 35 year old 72 
generator, so the Board can make funding decisions moving forward regarding what is 73 
needed and raise the funds necessary. Bartlett moved to approve the Town of Milton FY 74 
’17 Water Fund Budget as presented. Nolan second. Approved Unanimously. Bartlett 75 
moved to approve the Town of Milton FY ’17 Wastewater Fund Budget as presented. Nolan 76 
second. Approved Unanimously. There was no Board action to change the rates for FY ’17, 77 
they remain at the FY ’16 rates. 78 
 79 

D. Assign Portion of FY ’16 Fund Balance to Paving  80 
Gifford explained this Board action would assign a portion of the FY ’16 unspent funds, the 81 
fund balance, as assigned to be used for paving in FY ’17. $393,188.69 remains in unspent 82 
paving funds from FY ’16. Assigning that portion of the fund balance for FY ’17 would 83 
create a $790,688.69 paving line item for the fiscal year. Cushing moved to assign a portion 84 
of the general fund, fund balance from the end of FY ’16 for paving in the amount of 85 
$393,188.69, second by Bartlett. Approved Unanimously 86 

   87 
E. One Year Extension of Chittenden County Stream Team MOU 88 

Barlow Casey stated this is a procedural item for the CCRPC as it changes it bylaws. Nolan 89 
moved to approve the Stream Team MOU extension. Second by Bartlett. Approved 90 
Unanimously 91 
 92 
 93 
 94 
 95 
 96 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 3 of 4        June 21, 2016 
 

 97 
Old Business 98 
 99 
A. Bid Award, Care and Upkeep of Municipal Cemetery Grounds 100 

Keelty went over a comprehensive cost/benefit analysis he performed to ascertain the cost 101 
of cemetery ground maintenance by Town staff, full time and seasonal, versus the bids 102 
received for the work. He arrived at a Town cost of $33,946.26 annually and bids received 103 
ranged from approximately $26,000 to $40,000. He recommends the Selectboard approve 104 
the Town Manager to negotiate a contact with the successful low bidder, Collin’s 105 
Landscaping, Plowing and Mowing for the rest of calendar year 2016 with an option to 106 
extend the contract through 2018. The amount the bid was based on would be prorated for 107 
the remaining maintenance weeks in the year. Discussion followed regarding the cost 108 
benefit analysis and the data points Keelty incorporated into his work. Nolan moved to 109 
approve the Town Manager to negotiate a contract with Collin’s Landscaping, Plowing and 110 
Mowing for the Care and Upkeep of Municipal Cemetery Grounds, second by Cushing. 111 
Approved Unanimously 112 

 113 
VII. Manager’s Report 114 

Barlow Casey explained there was dog incident over the weekend and a vicious dog hearing will 115 
likely need to be held by the Selectboard. Wells stated a complaint had been received and 116 
under state statute the Selectboard shall hold a hearing within 7 days. It’s also advantageous to 117 
hold the hearing before the dog is released from a mandated 10 day quarantine. The Board 118 
tentatively planned to hold the hearing Friday. More information regarding procedure will come 119 
this week. Wells updated the Board that the McMullen Road sidewalk project is underway and 120 
going well.  121 
 122 

VIII. Warrant Report #29 123 
Cushing reviewed the warrant report and he noted pay items included water to Champlain 124 
Water District, Salt, Landfill post closure and polo shirts for rescue.  125 

 126 
Cushing moved to approve warrant report #29 in the amount of $177.899.77 for FY ’16 127 
expenses and $30,535.03 for July’s health insurance bill to be paid from FY ’16 as that payment 128 
was included in the budget, second by Palasik. Approved Unanimously. 129 

 130 
IX. Minutes of June 6 131 

Bartlett moved to approve the Selectboard Meeting Minutes from June 6 as presented. Second 132 
by Palasik. Approved Unanimously. 133 

 134 
X. Executive Session 135 

Bartlett moved to find premature public knowledge about Human Resources would cause the 136 
Town or person to suffer a substantial disadvantage.   Second by Cushing. Approved 137 
unanimously.  138 
  139 
Bartlett moved to enter into Executive Session to discuss Human Resources under the 140 
provisions of V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 and include Barlow Casey. Second by Nolan.  Approved 141 
unanimously. 142 
 143 
Entered Executive Session at 9:00 PM. 144 
 145 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 4 of 4        June 21, 2016 
 

Bartlett moved to close at 9:45 PM Executive Session, second by Palasik. Approved 146 
unanimously. 147 
 148 
There was no action as a result of Executive Session 149 
 150 

XI. Adjournment  151 
Palasik moved to adjourn the Selectboard Meeting. Second by Bartlett. Approved unanimously. 152 
 153 
Adams adjourned the meeting at 9:46 PM. 154 
 155 

Respectfully Submitted, 156 
___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 157 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 158 
 159 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 160 
 161 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          162 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 8        June 27, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Vicious Dog Hearing Minutes 1 
June 27, 2016 at 6:30 PM 2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair; Kenneth Nolan, Vice Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; 5 
John Palasik, Member; John Cushing, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present: None 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; Erik Wells, Director of Administration & 8 
Community Affairs; Paul Locke, Police Sergeant; Matthew McQueen, Police Officer; Police Chief; Don 9 
Turner, Fire/Rescue Chief; Victoria LaFountain, Rescue Member;  10 
 11 
Others Present: Bob Fletcher, Courtney Lamdin, Lynn Delaney, Sally Nolan, Robert Devino, Matthew 12 
Stern, David Von Holden, Allison Belizle, Tom Nichols, Joan White, Denis White, Duane Merrill, Carol 13 
Merrill, Carol Ann Ostrander, Lynne Fletcher, Alan Fletcher, Dave Muller, Tracey Tobin, Chris Mitiguy  14 

 15 
Adams called the hearing to order at 6:30 PM. 16 
 17 
Adams read the hearing notice: “The Selectboard of the Town of Milton, Vermont, will hold a 18 
Public Hearing pursuant to 20 V.S.A. § 3546 on Monday, June 27th at 6:30 PM in the Community 19 
Room of the Municipal Building at 43 Bombardier Road to hear evidence and receive testimony 20 
on a complaint of  "vicious dogs" concerning dogs named Scooter and Clearance owned by John 21 
Bowes and Gretchen Kunze presently residing at 250 Eagle Mountain Harbor Road in Milton, 22 
VT.” 23 
 24 
Adams read the written complaint: “The written complaint filed by Robert Devino of behalf of  25 
his injured wife Pauline Kehoe states: 26 

o Robert Devino reported the attack on behalf of his injured wife. They live at 239 Eagle 27 
Mountain Harbor Road. 28 

o The facts of the attack are as follows: 29 
o Occurred on 6/18/16 at 5:03 PM along Eagle Mountain Harbor Road  30 
o The victim was Pauline Kehoe of 239 Eagle Mountain Harbor Road 31 
o Other Facts stated:  32 

 Gretchen Kunze and John Bowes are the owners of the two rottweilers involved 33 
in the incident. Detailed information was provided to the police by the 34 
individuals involved in the situation and subsequent resulting actions. The 35 
incident occurred when John Bowes was walking his dogs (both reportedly on 36 
leash). Pauline Kehoe was also walking with Carolann Ostander to her car when 37 
she (Pauline) was attacked by the two rottweilers. Pauline sustained bites to her 38 
neck, her right hip and head. Also on her back (top of spine). The wounds were 39 
deep. Robert Devino was in his residence and awakened to the sound of 40 
screams, as well as dog barks. Milton Rescue responded to the incident and 41 
took Pauline to the hospital. The wounds were stitched up and treated, but 42 
Pauline sustains a loss of movement capability in her right arm and neck. She 43 
remained in the hospital until June 22, and will require physical therapy and the 44 
service of a visiting nurse until further notice. – Signed Robert S. Devino, 45 
6/23/16” 46 

 47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 8        June 27, 2016 
 

• Adams stated: “State Law 20 VSA 3546 requires the selectboard to hold a vicious dog hearing 48 
when a domestic pet or wolf-hybrid has bitten a person while the animal is off the premises of 49 
its owner or keeper, the person bitten requires medical attention for the attack, and such 50 
person files a written complaint with the selectboard. All attendees here tonight, this is a 51 
hearing in the public but not of the public. It will be conducted in an orderly manner according 52 
to the selectboard’s rules of procedure, and no public comment will be taken unless it is 53 
relevant to the complaint made and the dogs subject to this hearing. Selectboard members 54 
should disclose any conflicts of interest of ex parte communications with the participants and 55 
recluse themselves from the hearing when a conflict or the appearance of a conflict is present.  56 
 57 
Adams turned the hearing over to Town Attorney Bob Fletcher to call witnesses and submit 58 
testimony on the Town’s behalf.  59 
 60 
Fletcher called Milton Police Officer Matthew McQueen. After being sworn in McQueen stated 61 
he was on duty Saturday the 18th of June at approximately 5 PM and was dispatched to 239 62 
Eagle Mountain Harbor Road. The nature of the call was for a female bitten by a dog on her neck 63 
and side and McQueen was told there was bleeding by dispatch. He arrived on scene about 20 64 
minutes after the call. Upon arrival he saw Ms. Kehoe’s cousin on the road telling him Ms. Kehoe 65 
was on the lawn in front of her house, was bitten by dogs and needed oxygen. He got the first 66 
aid kit, saw Ms. Kehoe laying on the ground with her husband attending to her with what looked 67 
like a torn shirt placed against the side of her neck where her dog bite was. McQueen looked 68 
and asked if there were more wounds and was told there were on her hip and her back. He did 69 
not roll her over. Her right hip had dog puncture marks, not much bleeding but the puncture 70 
marks were significant. He took a bandage and covered it and waited for Milton rescue to arrive. 71 
McQueen spoke with Ms. Kehoe’s cousin Ms. Ostrander, and spoke with Ms. Kehoe while he 72 
was doing follow up while she was in the hospital. He spoke with Mr. Devino at the scene to get 73 
contact information as Rescue arrived quickly for transport. McQueen did not observe the 74 
wounds on the neck, he did not want to remove the shirt covering them. He did not see the 75 
dogs, they were inside when he arrived. He confirmed the dogs belonged to a Mr. Bowe and Ms. 76 
Kunze. He spoke with the victim Ms. Kehoe while she was in the hospital, she told him that she 77 
was walking her friend to the car when Mr. Bowes walked down his driveway walking his two 78 
dogs. She and Mr. Bowes had a conversation and then the dogs suddenly attacked her. 79 
McQueen asked if there had been a provocation to the dogs to Ms. Kehoe and Mr. Devino, and 80 
both replied the incident had happened very quickly and didn’t know. Mr. Devino did not claim 81 
that the dogs had been antagonized in any way or provoked. McQueen spoke with Ms. 82 
Ostrander at the scene and she relayed the same information- he didn’t question her as much 83 
because she wanted to go to the hospital. McQueen gathered that the dogs were both on 84 
leases. Mr. Bowes told him that there was one previous case when the dogs attacked a 85 
neighbor’s dog and another case when the dog came at him but he didn’t report it. McQueen 86 
stated the attack took place on the road and then she was dragged back to the grass in front of 87 
her property, the attacked occurred on Eagle Mountain Harbor Road. McQueen stated he 88 
prepared a written report of the incident, Fletcher produced a copy and McQueen affirmed it 89 
was an accurate copy to the best of his knowledge and belief. Fletcher moved introduction of 90 
the Town’s exhibit #1, the police report.  91 
 92 
Adams asked if the defendants were present or it they had an attorney present. Fletcher said 93 
no, and for the edification of the Board its understood the named defendants are both out of 94 
the country at the time. Both have submitted via email written statements to the Board that will 95 
be presented. Ms. Kehoe is not present but Mr. Devino is.  96 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 3 of 8        June 27, 2016 
 

The Town called Victoria LaFountain. After being sworn in, LaFountain stated she has been an 97 
EMT with Milton Rescue 6 years and with the Department 7 years. She stated she was on duty 98 
the afternoon of June 18th at approximately 5 PM and was dispatched to 239 Eagle Mountain 99 
Harbor Road. She was dispatched because of a dog attack, she arrived 20-25 minutes later. 100 
Upon arrival she observed the patient, husband and friend on the grassy part of the lawn. They 101 
had taken clothes and wet them down and were applying pressure to stop bleeding. She was 102 
able to talk briefly with the patient and assessed she was in pain. She was bleeding on the neck, 103 
back of the head, neck and right hip area. These were not simple puncture wounds LaFountain 104 
stated, they were a bite and drag that were torn and quite deep. Tissue on her neck was torn. 105 
She was having difficulty breathing and oxygen was applied. Hip injuries included scratches, 106 
abrasions and bites, LaFountain sated. Most concerning injury was to the neck close to artery 107 
and windpipe. She was injured from dog bites, looked like animal bites and consistent with a dog 108 
bite, LaFountain said. Time on scene was 10-15 minutes. She did not see the animals. Ms. Kehoe 109 
told her that she was walking her friend across the street to her car and Mr. Bowes was walking 110 
his dogs and stopped to have a conversation. From accounts it was an unprovoked attack and 111 
Ms. Kehoe described the attack as being thrown around like a rag doll according to LaFountain. 112 
LaFountain spoke with Ms. Ostrander and she relayed the same information – the attack 113 
happened quickly and she was thrown around like a rag doll. She did not speak with the dog 114 
owners. Bartlett asked if based on the location of the wounds and conversation if could tell that 115 
two dogs caused the injuries. LaFountain stated that yes, they were able to surmise the due to 116 
the nature of the bites and in her opinion that one dog could not have gone that quickly from 117 
both ends of her body. She stated there were abrasions, could have been from being on the 118 
ground or claws. Ms. Kehoe had injuries at her head, neck and top of spine on back. Palasik 119 
asked for clarification regarding one or two dogs, the victim kept saying dogs LaFountain said.  120 
 121 
The Town called Carol Ann Ostrander. After swearing in, she stated she is Ms. Kehoe’s cousin. 122 
She was at Ms. Kehoe’s home on Saturday, June 18th at approximately 5 PM. The purpose of the 123 
visit was social. She was getting ready to go home and Ms. Kehoe was showing her new 124 
plantings up on the road. Her car was across the road and Ms. Kehoe walked across the road 125 
with her. Ms. Ostrander stated that next she saw a man with two dogs come down off the hill 126 
perpendicular to the road right across from Ms. Kehoe’s house. The owner and two dogs took a 127 
left and walked past Ms. Ostrander and Ms. Kehoe and starting speaking with Ms. Kehoe. She 128 
overhead him say that they would not be neighbors much longer and that his wife was in 129 
Myanmar. While he was speaking with Ms. Kehoe with dogs were pretty far across the road 130 
peeing and stomping through her new plantings. Ms. Ostrander said she then threw her purse in 131 
her car and started to walk toward Ms. Kehoe. One dog knocked Ms. Kehoe down stated Ms. 132 
Ostrander, it did not look like it was on a leash anymore. Ms. Ostrander said she then recognized 133 
what was happening than because she was attacked by a dog at a softball game last year. Ms. 134 
Kehoe than hit her tailbone and her head hit the ground. Ms. Ostrander stated both dogs then 135 
were ripping Ms. Kehoe apart. She said what she was watching was her Pauline who she loves 136 
being murdered. One dog was ripping her throat and her head and the other dog was down by 137 
her hip Ms. Ostrander said. She was being mauled according to Ms. Ostrander. The dogs were 138 
both on a lease when she first saw them Ms. Ostrander said. At the time they came onto the 139 
road they were on a leash but on the road. Ms. Ostrander stated that she believes one dog was 140 
off the leash, it seemed like he wasn’t on a leash to her. The other dog she didn’t know. Ms. 141 
Ostrander called 911. The operator sent out police and rescue. Ms. Ostrander said at the time of 142 
the attack she did not do anything to provoke the dogs, and Ms. Kehoe did not do anything to 143 
provoke the dogs. She added she tried to kick one dog off her but it was like a brick wall. The 144 
dogs appeared to be really big, large, heavy dogs. She estimates they weighed over 100 lbs. Ms. 145 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 4 of 8        June 27, 2016 
 

Ostrander stated that she didn’t know Mr. Bowes’ reaction, all she remembered was Ms. Kehoe 146 
screaming for her life. She didn’t have any interaction with Mr. Bowes after. She doesn’t 147 
remember how she got Ms. Kehoe from the road to her house. She remembers screaming and 148 
then Bob hearing and coming out to help and he took over. Cushing asked about the leash and 149 
how much area the dogs could cover. Ms. Ostrander replied it could have been one of the 150 
extension leashes. She was so covered in blood after that rescue thought something had 151 
happened to her. After the incident Ms. Kehoe’s shoes and glasses where in the road with a 152 
broken collar and the police said not to touch anything and that they needed to take pictures, 153 
Ms. Ostrander said. She thinks maybe the first dog broke its collar. She said Mr. Bowes didn’t 154 
appear to have a lot of control over the dogs. Bartlett asked how she would describe the 155 
duration of the attack but Ms. Ostrander could not recall and how the dogs disengaged from the 156 
attack. Nolan asked if she had any recollection of the owner being involved in the altercation at 157 
all and Ms. Ostrander replied no only what the dogs were doing to Ms. Kehoe. Palasik asked to 158 
clarify if the owner Mr. Bowes gave any verbal commands to the dogs to stop – Ms. Ostrander 159 
replied that she didn’t know and may have been screaming so did not hear. She could not recall 160 
whether Mr. Bowes was holding any leashes in his hands. Adams asked what happened prior to 161 
the incident, Ms. Ostrander said Mr. Bowes in conversation with Ms. Kehoe stated that his 162 
girlfriend not wife was in Myanmar and they were going to be breaking up and he would be 163 
moving back to Great Britain soon. 164 
 165 
Fletcher stated at this point the Town has provided information under VSA 3546 to establish 166 
what had occurred and believe has proven the elements necessary for the Board to make a 167 
determination whether the dogs are to be disposed of, muzzled, chained, confined or otherwise 168 
dealt with. As indicated earlier the dog owners, neither of who could be there tonight have each 169 
submitted email statements. The Town does not have an objection if the Selectboard wants to 170 
receive that information. Town Manager Donna Barlow Casey passed out a copy of the email 171 
communication to the Board. She shared that she told Gretchen (Ms. Kunze) that she would 172 
provide it to the Selectboard and she asked that she and John (Mr. Bowes) have an opportunity 173 
to speak with the Board and would be available to speak within the next two weeks as both are 174 
currently abroad.  175 
 176 
Cushing asked about dog registration. Fletcher stated they were registered after the event to his 177 
knowledge. Cushing asked that those registration documents are made available for the hearing. 178 
Fletcher stated that with the defendants not here tonight and their request to address the 179 
Board that could lead to an adjourned hearing and an opportunity to speak with the Board at a 180 
future date. Fletcher stated he doesn’t think the Board is obligated to do that, but may be 181 
something it would want to do. If that was the case the registration materials could be supplied, 182 
but the police report states the registration took place after the incident occurred. Cushing 183 
asked for a copy of the documents to indicate the registration was after the fact.  184 
 185 
Adams asked about the 2015 incident mentioned by McQueen. Fletcher said he thinks it was an 186 
unreported incident. He does have information that would rebut some of the claims made by 187 
the dependents made about the dangerous propensities of their dogs. Adams asked him to 188 
proceed.  189 
 190 
Fletcher handed to Adams as evidence a settlement agreement as Town’s #2. It refers to a 191 
settlement reached between the defendants dogs and the persons named in the settlement. To 192 
rebut the statements made by the defendants in their email, paragraph #2 in the settlement 193 
that references the injuries suffered by the female in that incident. Bartlett read from paragraph 194 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 5 of 8        June 27, 2016 
 

#3 of the settlement that stated Clarence and Scooter shall always be on a leash when outdoors 195 
and under the control of a single person, one person not holding leashes for both dogs. Fletcher 196 
said this was a contract agreement between the parties that signed it. Bartlett said this is an 197 
example of an agreement to do something with the dogs and that was not the case regarding 198 
the separate matter at hand. Fletcher didn’t disagree, but the more relevant piece is paragraph 199 
#2 of the settlement referring to injuries by the woman being paid for which rebuts the emails 200 
that state the dogs have never caused injury to a human before. Nolan asked Fletcher to speak 201 
to paragraph #4 of the settlement, which refers to the agreement being enforced by an 202 
appropriate court order, and how it applies to the hearing this evening. Fletcher said it doesn’t 203 
apply directly, if the folks in the settlement chose to enforce it they could use the information 204 
shared this evening to do so and doesn’t bear on the decision to be made by this Board.  205 
 206 
Bartlett asked about the two owners moving and breaking up and if that had bearing on the 207 
ownership of the dogs. Fletcher said the dogs were under the custody and control of the two 208 
individuals, the relevant point is they are here in Milton and the folks who have them ought to 209 
be responsible for their behavior. The expiration of the 10 day quarantine period is Tuesday, 210 
June 28th. Fletcher said the Administration’s position is the Town is able to extend that period 211 
and advisable to do so. If the Board was in a position to proceed and make a decision this 212 
evening it could do that. If afforded the defendants to come and have their say, believe statute 213 
broad enough that under the circumstances that suggest the Town order temporarily that the 214 
dogs continue to be kenneled where they are. The Town would have an argument to make that 215 
the cost of the kenneling be made by the defendants. Nolan asked if Ms. Kunze was present 216 
during the attack, Fletcher stated through testimony and conversation with the Town Manager 217 
it is consistent that she was aboard during the time of the attack.  218 
 219 
Adams asked about the size, age type of dogs. 5 years, 7 months large male rotteweilers 220 
Fletcher stated. Bartlett asked for an update on the dog’s behavior. Fletcher said the 221 
information provided to him stated that each are doing well, eating and drinking normally and 222 
have no signs of rabies according to Pinebrook Kennel.  223 
 224 
Adams stated just received copies of the licenses from Milton PD number 838 and 839 dated 225 
June 22nd for Scooter and Clarence with online payment received. Both have proper vaccinations 226 
with dates of May 19th, 2015 and due for next vaccination on 5/19/18 from Petty Brook Vet 227 
Clinic.  228 
 229 
Fletcher stated no intent to call other witnesses this evening.  230 
 231 
Adams asked if anyone else present to share relevant information. 232 
 233 
Joan White stated after being sworn in that lived on Eagle Mountain Harbor Road for 26 years 234 
and walks the road regularly. Experienced walking on the road when Mr. Bowes had both dogs 235 
on leashes and had hard time holding them back. She called Milton PD to have it documented in 236 
case something happened that these dogs, as far as she knows, that these dogs were trained 237 
attack dogs for the couple in Laos and definitely not normal pets. Was afraid that something like 238 
this would happen. Palasik asked Sgt. Locke to search for the police reports of these calls.  239 
 240 
Tracey Tobin stated after being sworn in that on Labor Day 2013 she was on a neighbors 241 
property at the beach with other neighbors including Mr. Bowes. Her dog was off leash. Mr. 242 
Bowes went to feed his dogs and then came back with them on leash. Mr. Bowes’ dogs Scooter 243 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 6 of 8        June 27, 2016 
 

and Clearance attacked her 45 lb dog and the attack resulting in multiple stitches and the dog’s 244 
ear being reattached. She didn’t report the incident at the time because her dog was off leash 245 
and didn’t know Mr. Bowes was coming back with his dogs to the beach. Her dog ran up to the 246 
road  and the incident happened there.  247 
 248 
David Van Holden after being sworn in stated he lives in Eagle Mountain Harbor Road and walks 249 
the road each day. He witnessed Ms. Tobin’s dog being attacked and it was horrible. He also 250 
referenced the incident referred to earlier in the settlement. He had to adapt his life to not walk 251 
by Mr. Bowes house.  252 
 253 
Adams asked if the Board would like to hear from Mr. Devino. Palasik said updated medical 254 
condition if wanted to share.  255 
 256 
Robert S. Devino stated after being sworn in that Ms. Kehoe spent 4 days in the hospital. He 257 
stated she is lucky to be alive, had the two incision been an inch or two to one side or another 258 
could hit the jugular vein in neck. Could have lost an ear. Bleeding extensively from neck and he 259 
was able to get that to stop, he stated. Used his knee to get the hip bleeding to stop. Everything 260 
could have been a lot worse, Devino said. Ms. Kehoe had 12-15 stitches to her neck, and has 261 
about 40 stitches in various parts of her body and fortunately it is healing well, he added. She 262 
still can’t walk very well, the surgeon was able to stick his hand in the laceration in her hip, 263 
Devino said. Concern is her arm, can’t touch her nose, he added. As the nerves come back into 264 
feeling have combo of pain and swelling. Ms. Kehoe is undergoing occupational and physical 265 
therapy currently, Mr. Devino said and she looks like she was beaten badly by several men. Paw 266 
print size on hand between shoulder blades. Very strong women and it’s a good thing, many 70 267 
year old ladies would have died during that attack, he added. She’s going to be alright, but does 268 
not know how long it will be until she gets feeling back in arm, he said. Devino stated main 269 
concern now is nerve damage in upper shoulder and neck. She went through 2 hours of surgery 270 
the night of the attack due to the variety of cuts and lacerations. Skin graphs may be required 271 
for hip, but unsure if will come to that. Devino said has seen serious injuries but never his own 272 
wife. Adams asked where the dogs and Mr. Bowes were when he came out of the house during 273 
the attack. Devino said he saw Mr. Bowes pull up in his vehicle and asked him to leave. Bartlett 274 
asked if having the dogs removed from Town and never seen again would be acceptable. Devino 275 
stated torn, loves dogs and has 4 rescue dogs. But these are not normal dogs, they are trained 276 
to attack. Does not know if passing the buck and sending to Myanmar would be best, he said.  277 
 278 
Palasik asked to recall McQueen. Sgt. Locke reported he was unable to find any police reports 279 
with Ms. White’s name after a cursory search but could continue to search in the future. Palasik 280 
asked McQueen if the injuries described by Devino were consistent with what he saw. McQueen 281 
said yes, he briefly saw the neck injury and indicated on his own neck. Her hip he didn’t see 282 
much blood but a significant amount of puncture marks. Palasik asked about a choke collar – 283 
McQueen said it was a rubber flea and tick collar. McQueen did not see any other collars. Nolan 284 
asked to clarify pictures being taken and it as a crime scene. McQueen did take pictures but did 285 
not recall referring to it as a crime scene. He can upload photos for viewing.  286 
 287 
Cushing asked about police reports where other dogs were bitten. Fletcher said the continuation 288 
of the hearing would afford the opportunity to have the police reports if they exist. The 289 
challenge the Board has is the incident currently being heard is under a statute that pertains to 290 
attacks by a dog of wolf hybrid against a human which requires the attack taking place off 291 
owners property without provocation and requires medical attention with a complaint filed. All 292 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 7 of 8        June 27, 2016 
 

those elements exist. The information pertaining to the dogs interactions with other dogs does 293 
not pertain to the June 18th incident.  294 
 295 
Adams asked if the owners are residents of Milton or if this is a second home. Staff could not 296 
officially report. Adams asked about statute of when a dog must be licensed. Fletcher stated 297 
according to the Town of Milton Ordinance Section 11 that all dogs owned or harbored older 298 
than 6 months in Town must be licensed.  299 
 300 
Sgt. Locke after being sworn in stated the other incidents he searched for that evening after 301 
hearing the testimony did not result in any matches with a cursory search. Without going 302 
through each case individually cannot know for sure – case may have been coded differently. It 303 
happens on occasion. Nolan asked about the 2015 attack. Locke printed off the case and read 304 
briefly. He explained the defendants dogs got loose one day, got to neighbors yard where they 305 
dogs attacked each other and the neighbor’s dog owner got bitten during the incident. Locke 306 
submitted the police report for review. He confirmed it’s in connection to the settlement 307 
introduced previously. The 2015 police report is Town’s #3.  308 
 309 
Cushing asked Fletcher about case law from 1983 referenced by the defendants in the emails 310 
submitted. The case is a civil case Fletcher said, it’s a negligent standard not statutory.  311 
 312 
Discussion regarding process commenced.  313 
 314 
Bartlett asked Fletcher about due process in the proceedings. It’s not the responsibility of the 315 
Milton PD to advise the defendants of the proceedings and did not have the information that 316 
Mr. Bowes and Ms. Kunze were not at the property of Eagle Mountain Harbor Road, Fletcher 317 
said. The Milton PD stopped by multiple times between June 24th and June 27th at varying times 318 
throughout the day in an attempt to serve the notice of the hearing to the defendants. Ms. 319 
Kunze had actual notice of these hearings because someone in Town who knows her mother 320 
called her mother who then informed Ms. Kunze who then called and spoke with Barlow Casey 321 
in the morning.  322 
 323 
Barlow Casey after being sworn in stated the after she spoke with Ms. Kunze that morning she 324 
offered her the opportunity to speak via phone or Skype three times during the conversation. 325 
She is in Asia and would have been a different time. She did not take the Town up on that 326 
matter and said did not have enough time to contact legal counsel of their own.  327 
 328 
Nolan asked Sgt. Locke for the information on Milton PD’s outreach. Locke said the notice was 329 
provided to him to serve on Friday the 24th by the Town Manager’s Office. He and three other 330 
officers attempted to serve notice at 5:59 PM on 6/24, then 6 PM on 6/25 then 3:30 PM on 6/26 331 
and then 8:45 AM on 6/27. He just became aware of an email address today. Locke said a 332 
tracking sheet was used each time the officers went. 333 
 334 
Nolan moved to adjourn and close the hearing and move into a private deliberative session. 335 
Second by Palasik. Approved unanimously. 336 
 337 
Adams closed the hearing and entered deliberative at session at 8:17 PM.  338 
 339 

 340 
 341 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 8 of 8        June 27, 2016 
 

 342 
 343 

Respectfully Submitted, 344 
 345 

___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 346 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 347 
 348 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 349 
 350 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          351 


	Milton Selectboard Packet 7.11.16
	signed agenda
	Appointments
	Milton Broncos Football Jamboree 2016
	MEMO Workplace Safety and Policy
	TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205
	Article XIV Work Place Health and Safety
	Section 1.Vermont Occupational Safety Hazards Act (VOSHA)
	Section 2. Smoking and Tobacco PolicyCombustible, Non-Combustibles & Alcohol
	Section 3. Drug Testing
	Section 4. Clothing


	2016 Bike Ped Grant L&F
	ResolutionFY17 VTrans Bike Ped Grant
	Resolution

	BikePed Application Form 2016
	Grant Application Accompanying Memo
	TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205

	Contingency to Cap reserve
	$10,000 GHSP Grant - Radar Signs
	Request to Order Two Cruisers
	Financial Questionaire
	warrant 1
	SB Minutes 6.21.16 draft
	Draft Minutes

	SB Minutes 6.27.16 Vicious Dog Hearing

	Scoping Title: 
	Large Const Title: x
	Small Title: 
	Applicant: Town of Milton, VT
	Contact Name: Donna Barlow Casey
	Address: 43 Bombardier Road
	Town: Milton, VT
	Zip Code: 05468
	Email: dbarlowcasey@town.milton.vt.us
	Phone: 802-891-8021
	Accounting: Automated
	DUNS#: 005702816
	FYEndMo: [June]
	RPC: [Chittenden Co. RPC]
	ProjTypeScop: Off
	ProjTypeDes_Const: Yes
	ProjTypeSmall: Off
	FacilityType: Walk
	FacilOtherDescr: 
	ProjLength: 3,830 feet 
	ScopeDescrip: 
	Design_ConstDescrip: Project will fill in 3,830 linear feet of sidewalk gaps that currently exist along US Route 7 South in Milton from Nancy Drive to Haydenberry Drive. When complete, this project will enable a full linear sidewalk network from Nancy Drive to Rene's Market along Route 7 South. Filling in the sidewalk gaps will improve safety and pedestrian mobility in a residential section of town and provide connection to the commercial district. This is part of the Milton 4D Sidewalk and Streetscaping Project. 
	SmallScaleDescrip: 
	ScopConsCost: 
	ScopAdmCost: 
	ScopTotalCost: 0
	LargeEngCost: 106194
	Map: Yes
	LargeROWCost: 90000
	LargeConstCost: 614066
	LargeInspCost: 79645
	LargeAdminCost: 72716
	LargeTotalCost: 962621
	SmallConstCost: 
	SmallTotalCost: 0
	OtherFunding: 
	Partial: Yes
	PartYes: RedScope
	RedScopExplain: The two sidewalk gap segments (A&B) south of Bombardier Road that require ravine crossings. This breakdown is included in the project budget.
	PubMtgDate: 7/11/2016


